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Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1376

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $(776,000) $(74,000)

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

HB 1376 creates a sales tax exemption for sales of used clothing by a thrift store owned and operated by a nonprofit 
entity.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

If enacted, HB 1376 is expected to reduce state general fund and state aid distribution fund revenues by an 
estimated $850,000 in the 2017-19 biennium.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to a sales tax exemption for sales of used clothing by a thrift store of a nonprofit 
corporation . 

Minutes: Attachment #1, 2 

Chairman Headland: Opened hearing on HB 1376. 

Representative Hogan: Introduced bill. Distributed testimony. See attachment #1. Ended 
testimony at 3:50. 

Chairman Headland: Do all thrift stores across the state add the sale tax on to the price 
they collect or do they remit to the state the sales tax due on a dollar transaction? 

Representative Hogan: I believe they report item by item. They need to follow the same 
standards as everyone else. Originally the bill two sessions ago exempted all items at thrift 
stores so we decided to scale it back and just have used clothing . Used clothing has already 
been taxed once so this is a double tax on the same item. I think this is a just issue for poor 
people. 

Representative Olson: Are there any other entities in the state that receive exemptions on 
the sales they make? 

Representative Hogan: I do not know. We should probably ask the tax department. There 
are some for profit thrift stores so we took them out of this. 

Chairman Headland: This bill wouldn't really help with the little girl buying the books since 
it is related to used clothing . 

Representative Hogan: It would not but the mother's ability to help her would have because 
she bought the clothing before. 

Chairman Headland: Is there any further testimony in support? Is there any testimony in 
opposition? 
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Bill Wocken, North Dakota League of Cities: Distributed testimony in opposition. See 
attachment #2. Ended testimony at 8:35. 

Chairman Headland: Are there any questions? 

Representative Steiner: What does Bismarck spend on homelessness or funding of 
housing, meals for the homeless, etc. and is that included in their budget? 

Bill Wocken: The city of Bismarck's budget has money for homelessness. We also have 
money for a cooperative sheltering program that is being run by Ruth Meier's Hospitality 
House. There are some limited expenditures for the homeless in our budgets. I'm not sure 
of the exact amounts. 

Representative Hogan: Have you had an opportunity to look at the fiscal note? Do you 
know what the fiscal impact on the city would be? 

Bill Wocken: No, I have not had a chance to look at the fiscal note. The city's concern is 
primarily the precedent. 

Representative Hogan: Did you look at all the current exemptions to sales tax? Have you 
prioritized any you think we shouldn't have? 

Bill Wocken: I have not looked at all the exemptions. I recall a discussion a few years ago 
that if all the exemptions in the sales tax were removed it could be reduced about half of the 
present rate. 

Representative Olson: You state this will increase the load on those who pay the tax if we 
give an exemption to one group and that will then cause the others to pay a higher share. 
You're not in favor of more sales tax exemptions but last week we had testimony in favor of 
continuing exemptions to property taxes in renaissance zones. There are other areas where 
these taxes are being given away which impact school districts and counties. 

Bill Wocken: In some cases exemptions are given that produce income where they should. 
In the case of development incentives, typically you get more back for the long haul. Property 
tax by expansion of the property tax phase would be giving up more of the temporary 
exemption. That is the reason the League of Cities has supported the temporary exemptions 
like renaissance zones because they produce a larger tax base which is a plus to the system. 
Sales tax is a one-time transaction so those dollars are lost. 

Representative B. Koppelman: If the theory of the renaissance zone is that it will produce 
more tax in the long term and if the bill sponsor's intention is to help the needy, wouldn't they 
produce more money and spend more money thus generate a higher amount of sales tax 
down the road? 

Bill Wocken: If that line of logic continues then that would certainly be something to be 
considered the same as an incentive. In the case of a property tax exemption for 
development purposes, those things are directly linked together. It's on that individual 
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property exemption when it is granted for the increase in market value that will occur on that 
property. Since we are all individuals I can't predict that sort of thing would happen with the 
sales tax exemption. 

Chairman Headland: Are there any other questions? Is there further opposition? Are there 
any questions for the tax department? 

Representative Hogan: Can you explain the other fund impact on the fiscal note? 

Myles Vosberg, Tax Commissioner's Office: The other funds are the state aid distribution 
so there's always a fraction of the sales tax revenue. 

Representative Hogan: Do you know what the impact would be on the local subdivisions? 
Do you have an easy way to get that for us so we can address the League of Cities question? 

Myles Vosberg, Tax Commissioner's Office: The fiscal note for $850,000 represents five 
percent. In Bismarck they have a one percent tax not counting the local county tax so you'd 
be at a fifth of that so roughly $170,000 in addition would also be city loss for each one 
percent of tax. 

Representative Hogan: So for cities with three percent sales tax it would be three times 
that? 

Myles Vosberg, Tax Commissioner's Office: Correct. 

Representative Hogan: Is that $170,000 for the biennium? 

Myles Vosberg, Tax Commissioner's Office: For the biennium. 

Chairman Headland: Is there anything else? Seeing none we will close the hearing on HB 
1376. 

Committee discussion. 

Vice Chairman Dockter: This is worthwhile but I know there are millionaires going in these 
thrift stores buying clothes. I would support a do not pass. As tax policy we try to be 
consistent. 

Representative Hogan: When is it a tax cut and when is it an investment? I see this as an 
investment in the people, particularly in my community because I have such a high rate of 
poverty. 

Chairman Headland: Over the years I've seen people on assistance wearing the finest 
clothes and not necessarily buying them at a thrift store. I have nothing against that but if 
they have the money to pay the sales tax for new clothes, is this really such a burden that 
needs to be considered? 
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Representative Hogan: Those kinds of issues of people who dress very nicely, you just 
don't know their history of why they are receiving benefits. When you spend time in a thrift 
store the people in line are mostly those who struggle with their expenses every single month. 

Representative 8. Koppelman: There are privately owned thrift stores. I think the 
competition portion of this is a real problem for me. I don't think this is a good bill. 

Representative Hogan: Originally, the first bill had all the thrift stores in it but was since 
limited to nonprofits. A major piece of discussion was that occasionally a thrift store may get 
new clothing donated that has never been taxed. We tried to limit the scope of this exemption 
to lower the fiscal impact and assure that everything being sold is truly used. 

Representative Ertelt: One of the provisions on this bill I struggle with is the used clothing 
portion. I've been in thrift stores where they have new items. I think this is a bit cumbersome 
differentiating these new items from used items. 

Representative Hogan: I was concerned about that too but I spoke with the people in the 
thrift stores and they said they could do it pretty simply and do it automatically. 

Representative Hatlestad: Do the thrift stores make enough money that they could pay the 
sales taxes? 

Representative Hogan: That's an interesting question. I think the people having a hard 
time paying the sales tax without charging the consumer would be the low end people where 
they charge less. 

Representative Olson: The nonprofit is looking to keep their revenues as low as possible 
so they can be the most benefit to the lowest income people they can. That depends on the 
administrative costs of that particular nonprofit being low. 

Representative Hogan: The new life center did not pay their staff minimum wage but they 
are required to pay their staff minimum wage to comply with the federal law but that's how 
thin their administrative costs were. 

Representative Ertelt: These nonprofits who have a business place benefit from sales tax 
as well. That is another reason why I struggle with the bill. 

Representative B. Koppelman: MADE A MOTION FOR A DO NOT PASS. 

Representative Steiner: SECONDED. 

Chairman Headland: Is there further discussion? 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 12 YES 2 NO O ABSENT 

Representative Hatlestad will carry this bill. 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_13_004 
Carrier: Hatlestad 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1376: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Headland, Chairman) recommends 

DO NOT PASS (12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1376 was 
placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar. 
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Testimony in support of 
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January 23, 2017 
By Kathy Hogan, Rep. District 21 

Chairman Headland and members of the House Finance and Taxation 

Committee, for the record, my name is Kathy Hogan. I represent District 21 

which is the heart of Fargo and the poorest district in North Dakota outside the 

reservations. 

House Bill 1376 is a simple bill that would eliminate sales tax at not-for-profit 

thrift stores on used clothing. This bill has a number of impacts. It will help 

the not for profit community provide a range of services. It will be a decrease 

in state general funds but not as dramatic as other options being considered. 

My primary concern in introducing the bill is the impact on low and moderate 

income families. 

Most people who routinely utilize thrift stores have very limited incomes. Last 

summer after dropping donations off at the St. Vincent's thrift store in Fargo, I 

decided to go into the store and purchase some books for my 3-year-old 

granddaughter. At the book section, I encountered a 5 or 6 year old girl going 

through the books. Her mother was buying clothes for her year old brother. 

The girl had one dollar to spend and each book cost 25 cents. She struggled to 

pick her favorite four books and finally made her decision. I was several people 

behind her in line at the checkout. Her mother went through first and when 

the girl gave the clerk her books, the clerk said it would be 1.06. The girl 

panicked because she didn't have the six cents. Neither did her mother. If she 

had not had to pay sales tax on the clothing, she would have had that 6 cents. 

Thankfully, the woman next in line offered the six cents and the girl thanked 

her. 

Sales tax is the most regressive tax we have. Reducing this tax will help those 

in our state who struggle the most with day to day needs. I urge your support 

of HB 1327. I am more than willing to answer any questions. 
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Testimony in Opposition to House Bill 1376 
January 23, 2017 
House Finance and Taxation Committee 
Bill Wocken on behalf of North Dakota League of Cities 

Good Morning Mr. Chairman and members of the House Finance and Taxation 

Committee. For the record , my name is Bill Wocken, appearing on behalf of the North 

Dakota League of Cities in opposition to House Bill 1376. 

House Bill 1376 is a bill that would exempt sales of used clothing from a thrift store 

owned and operated by a nonprofit company from paying sales tax. This concept has 

been considered in several previous sessions. It is not the entity that concerns the 

League of Cities but the precedent the exemption sets . 

There are many exemptions to the sales tax at present and adding additional 

exemptions just increases the load on those who pay the sales tax. In this time of 

decreased revenues and financial hardship for our state it is especially important that 

existing revenue sources be preserved. There are many other worthwhile causes like 

this one who will ask for similar treatment if this exemption is granted. 

Mr. Chairman and Committee members, the North Dakota League of Cities passed a 

resolution at its annual meeting asking that there be no additional sales tax exemptions. 

For this reason, I am requesting a DO NOT PASS recommendation on House Bill 1376 . 


